
UNITED NATIONS 

" • ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL COUNCIL ({J .. :. ~ 
~. ,~. ~II Fortt·fifth session 
" i¥ OFFICIAL RECORDS 

1 SSird meeting 

Frida,y, 26 July 1968 
at 3.20 p.m. 

PALAIS :PES NATIONS, GENEVA 
'"""'7~ 

CONTENTS 

Agenda item 25: 
Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting of 

Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples by the 
specialized agencies and the international institutio~~~o 
associated with the United Nations (continued) • • . ; 

Agenda item 12: 

139 

3. The ILQ ha.d always>been willing to supplement and 
support political action decided on :by the·United Nations 
and was morally -associate4 with the advancement ''-<>f 
dependent peoples through the implementation of the 
relevant resolutions, such· as those on colonialism, 
apartheid and Southern Rhodesia. _ 

Question of convening an international conference on 
, problems of the human environment (resumed from the 

1S48th meeting) • , • • • • • • . • • • • • • • • • 

4. The fifty-second session of the International Labour 
Conference, held in June 1968~ had considered a resolu" 
tion on action to be taken along the lines advocated in 

142 ·General Assembly resolution 2311 (XXIi). As Dhe ILO's 
------------------.. -- Resolutions Committee had not completed its consideta .. 

President: Mr. PEREZ GUERRERO (Venezuela). 

AGENDA ITEM 25 

Implementation of the Decim-ation ow the Granting of 
Indepemt~nce to Colonial Couatries and Peoples by the 
specialized agencies~ and. the international institutions 
~r;sociated with the United Nations (E/4546, E/4547, 
E/4557 rutd Corr.l) (continued) · 

1. :Or. CANDAU (World Health Organization) said that 
the position of WHO with respect to the implementation 
of the Declaration under. consideration was clearly 
described in doCUment E/4557, paragraphs 30-35. He 
drew l'>articular attention to paragraph 34 and explained 
that th~ discussion in the World Health Assembly had 
related to the problem of malaria and smallpox eradica .. 
tion and diseases peculiar to Mrica, such as sleeping 
sickness, which were transmitted by vectors. In accordance 
with the World Health Assembly's directives, he was 
endeavouring to see what cculd be done to protect not 
only the population of the territories concerned but 
also the population of neighbouring territories, since in 
the case of communicable diseases it was most important 
to know what was going on in adjacent areas. Accordingly, 
di.~cussions were under way with the United Nations 
High ~ommissioner for Refugee~. concern?ng the possi?le 
estabbshment of a WHO progralllll1e m areas .which 
had received refugees from Portuguese Territories and 
he was in touch with the Portuguese Government with 
a view to collecting information on the situation in the 
Territories under its administration. He would p~rsonally 
visit some of those Territories to determine what could 
be done to protect the population and the population 
of neighbouring cotintries from diseases which raised 
both health and economi~-~!1>bl~ms for Africa. He would 
be glad to answer any questtons which the Council 
might wish to ask. r ,~ -

2. Mr. ALI (International Labour Organisation) said that 
the statement made on the matter under consideration 
by the ILO's Director.;General at the joint meetings of 
the Committee for Programm.e and Co-ordination (CPC) 
and the Adtn.inistrative Committee on Co .. ordinatfon 
(ACC) had been summarized in paragraphs 24 and 25 
of document B/4557. 

tion of the· matter, the Conference, with th~ agreement 
of the sponsor, hud, unanimously den\deCl to refer the 
entire matter to i:4~ ILO's Governing Body. The Govern­
ing Body had unallimou~ly decided td include].t e que'Stion 
in the agench\; of its next session, to be held.~ November. 
The Council would be infonped of the a~tio taken. 

~ \:: J 

5. Mr. de SILVA (United Natjons Educational, Sci9ntific 
and Cultural Organization) said that the .S~aJ.'Y of 
the Director .. General's statement at' the joP1t :Qleetirig 
of ACC and CPC indicated the way m \ithich UNESCO 
was implementing the Declaration. 'The policy of 
UNESCO, as defined by the Ge~eral Conference and the 
Executive Board, was in complete . accordance with 
General Ass~mbly resolution 2311 (XXIl). In 1965, in 
conne:xion with the admission of Portugal to UNESCO~ 
the Executive Board had adopted a decision (70 EX/ 
Decision 14) inviting the DirectorwGeneral to carry "out, 
with the authorizatio1.1 of the Portuguese Government, -
and with the aid either of qualified officials of the secre .. 
tariat or.,of appropriate eminent persons, a study in §itu 
of the current state of education in African Territories 
under Portuguese administration. It haa further requested 
the Director-General not to give effect, pending the results 
of that study and their examination by the Board, to any 
invitations to Portugal by virtue of decisions of the 
General Conference or of the Executive Board and had 
asked him. to bring the 1·esQlutiort to the attention of the 
Portugues~ .. Government with a request that all the 
:necessary llcilities be granted within . the Territories 
concerned for carrying out the study. In the ensuing 
correspondence between the'· UNESCO secretariat and 
the Portu~ese Governmen-::, the latter had refused to 
participate ' in the execution of that decision. At its 
fourteenth session, therefore, the General Conference 
had adopted a resolution confirming the Executive 
Board,s decision, and its resolution 20 authorized the 
Director-General to take the action described in that 
decision. 
6. With respect to the suspension of assistance, the 
Direotor-General.considered, therefore, that UNESCO's 
policy was in full conformity with General Assembly 
resolutions op::"the subject. .. 
7- The Dir~ttor-General had also emphasizedJ at the 
joint :meetin\y, of ACC and CPC, the possibility of 

139 
\\ 

~/SR.1553 II;' 
\1 



140 E\~tmomic' and Social CouucO--::.F_o_r...::ty_ .. ft_ft_h_s_es_si_on ____________ _ 

UNESCO action to awaken world publi.c opinion to the 
matter under consideration and had pointed out that 
UNESCO had prepared and published in 1967, at the 
request of the United Nations Special Committee on 
the Policies of Apartheid of the Government of the Repub­
lic of South Africa, and with the authodzation of its 
Executive Board, a study entitled Apartheld: its Effects 
on Education: Science, Culture and Communication. 

8. There seemed, however, to be at\ inconsist'~'ncy between 
operative paragraphs 4 and 6 Qf Genend Assembly 
resolut~on 23,11 (XXII), since an agency could not help 
nationails within their countdes without act:i~ug upon a 
government request~ He looked forward to the dis1~ussions 
of the Council for guidance on way~1 ancit mea:n.s to help 
further in implementing that resolution, which would be 
conveyed to the governing bodi(~S of UNESCO. 

. 
9. Mr. NEHl:!MIAH (Food and Agdculture Organiz~­
tion of the United Nations) said tiJ.at the action taken by 
FAO on the matter under consideration hadl been des­
cribed by its Director~General at the· j(>int me.etings of 
the ACC and CPq .and was summarized in paragraphs 
2<iand 27 of document E/4557. 
10. Giving cxq.mples of the aid provided by FAO, he 
said that in Ottober 1964 it had approved t~mergency 
food assistance to the Government of Tam~ania t?r the 
f€eding' of refugees from Mozambique. The' Wodd Food 
Programme had continued that assistance on the basis 
of a development scheme for the per1tnanent settlement 
of the refugees, which had been approved in 1966, at a 
total cost of .$6t~,OOO. However~ oWJ\ng to an almost 
continuous influx of refugees into the ar~a, food aid had 
been further extended in September 1966 to cover an 
additional 4,000 refugees under an eixpanded project 
at a cost of over $200,000. In Decembe1r 1966, FAO had 
similarly approved emergency food aid for Tanzania 
for six months to 6,000 refugees, who had moved into 
another part of Tanzania, at a total cost of over $300,000. 
Aid had subsequently been increased as requirements 
had increased, and had resUlted in a development project 
for settlement of refugees approved by the Executive 
Director of WFP at a total cost of over $600,000. In 
1967, FAO had also provided emergency f.':'od aid t~ the 
Government of Zambia to feed refugees fro1n South and 
South West Mric~, Mozambique, Angola and Rhodesia, 
and additional ass\:.stance had been provided by WFP in 
the settlement of those refugees. In March 1968, FAO 
had granted further emergency food aid for six months 
to additional Angolan refugees who had crossed into 
Zambia. Those figures illustrated FAO's desire to assist 
refugees from those Territories whenever the need arose, 
and the Director-General intended to keep their require­
ments in view. 

11. With regard to paragraph 4 of General Assembly 
resolution 2311 (XXII) and relations with the Republic 
of South Mrica, Portugal and Southern Rhodesia, he 
drew attention to paragraph 26 of document E/4557. 

12. The Director•General shared the view expressed by 
some specialized agencies concerning an inconsistency 
between paragraph 4 of that resolution, which called 
on the agencies to refrain from giving any assistance to 

Portugal, and paragraph 3 which requested them to 
assist in every possible way the peoples within the 
Territories under the control of Portugal. 
13. FAO faced a problem with respect to the control of 
livestock diseases and crop pests, since the inhabitants 
of the Portuguese Territories could not he assisted without 
the active co-operation of the metropolitan ~ower. The 
Director-General would therefore be grateful for guidance 
from the Council on the way in which that problem could 
be tackled in ,the light of the directives contained in the 
resolution. 

14. Mr. RIVET (World I\.1eteorological Organization) 
said that the position of WMO on the implementation 
of the Declaration was described in paragraph 41 of 
document E/4557. The question had been examined by 
the Executive Committee at its twentieth 5ession, held 
in June 1968, and no new developments had sine~ 
occurred, except that in accordance with the directives 
given by that Committee the WMO bodies dealing with 
training had been re~uested to give priority to training 
of refugees. 
:· 5. Southern Rhodesia had a special position within 
WMO, as it had been admitted to membership in 1951 
as ont. ofthe Territories grouped under ''· British Central 
Mrican Territories". It was stiU a member Torritory, 
and WMO had no official relations with the present 
Government. All communications concerning that Tertia 
tory were addre~sed to the United Kingdom as the State 
responsible for applying the WMO Convention to the 
Territory. 
16. During its deliberations the Executive Committee 
had given thorough consideration to the question and was 
anxious to take within its terms of reference all necessary 
action. It had requested the Secretary-General of WMO 
to report to it when further action could be required. 

17. Mr. EDDY (Inter-Governmental Maritime Consulta­
tive Organization) drew attention to the summary of the 
statement made by the Secr~tary-General of IMCO at 
the joint meeting of ACC and CPC (B/4557, para­
graph 42). On that occasion he had pointed out that 
Portugal was a signatory to certain internatior;;al conven­
tioh's of which IMCO was the depositary. If a conference 
had to be called for the revision of any of those conven­
tions and he received no instructio.p.s to the contrary, 
he would feel obliged to invite all States parties to the 
convention in question. 

18. Mr. COX (Sierra Leone) hoped that representatives 
of the specialized agencies which had not yet spoken 
would be able to describe what action they had taken to 
implement the Declaration. 
19. Referring to the FAO representative's observations 
on . General Assembly resolution 2311 (XXII), he said 
that there was no contradiction between its operative 
paragraphs 3 and 4. There was a clear distinction between 
" people struggling for their liberation from colonial 
rule ", who should receive assistance from the specialized 
agencies and international institutions, and the governing 
authorities of the Territories concerned, who should not. 



1553rd meeting-26 July 1968 141 

20. Mr. DIALLO (Upper Volta) supported the views 
expressed by the representative of Sierra Leone conc~rn­
ing the participation of other specialized agencies in the 
discussion. It was vital that the Council should have as 
m1.~ch information as possible on the implementation of 
the Declaration. 

21. Mr. CONSOLO (International Bank for Reconstruc­
tion and Development) said that, pursuant to ~.he resolu .. 
tions adopted by the Gen~ral Assembly at its twenty .. 
first session, the Secretary-General had consulted the 
President of the International Bank on the matter of 
withholding financial assistanc.e from Portugal and South 
Mrica. In the co'Urse of those consultatiom:, in the early 
part of 1967, bdefs had been exchanged between the 
Legal Counsel of the United Nations and the General 
Counsel of the International Bank. The Legal Counsel 
of the United Nations had arg.ued that the Bank should 
take certain actions under the General Assembly resolu­
tions in question and the Bank's General Counsel had 
shown that, under the terms of its Articl~s of Agreement, 
the Bank was not free to comply with such requests. 
Th~ E1r~utiv~ Directors of the Bank, who were responsible 
for the interpretation of the Articles of Agreement, had, 
after ca.!eful consideration of all the arguments advanced, 
endorsed the positions of the Bank's General Counsel. 

22. Despite that legal position which prevented the Bank 
from complying with the General Assembly resolutions 
in question, its President, in a letter of 18 August 1967, 
had given a firl11 assurance to the Secretary-General and, 
through hitn, to tn~ United Nations organs conc~rn~d 
of the Bank's eantest desir~ to co-opr'erate with the 
United Nations by all legitimate mean·s artd, to the 
extent consistent with its Articles of Agree~l:)lent, to avoid 
any action tbat might run counter to the plU'poses of the 
United Nations. 

23. The Secretary-General, in his reply of23 August 1967, 
had welcomed that assurance and had said that the 
President's letter would be transmitted to the General 
Assembiy and the Special Committ~e on the Situation 
with regard to the lmpl~mentation of the Declaration. 

24. The Bank's position had been confirmed in the Fourth 
Committee of the General Assembly, during the d~bate 
preceding the adoption of resolution 2311 (XXIT), which 
had been formally notified to the Bank and had been 
brought to the attention of its Executive Directors. 

25. On 30 April 1968, the Secretary-G~neral had written 
to the President of the Bank in connexion with the 
inclusion of an item relating to General Assembly resolu­
tion 2311 (XXII) in the Council's agenda and had enquired 
what steps had been taken or were envisaged by the Bank 
in resp~ct of the r~solution. On 10 May 1968, the President 
had replied that the resolution did not call for any action 
that the Bank could take within the sphere of its activities. 
In fact, with regard to operative paragraph 3, the Bank 
provided financial assistance only to member States or 
with the guarantee of member States. With regard to 
operative paragraph 4, the position presented by th~ 
Bank's General Counsel and endorsed by its Executive 
Directors remained unchanged. 

26. The present President of the Bank fully confirmed the 
views expressed by the former President in his letter of 
18 August 1967. 

27. Mr. WILLIAMS (International Monetary Fund) 
said that General Ass~mbly resolution 2311 (XXII) had 
been brought to the attention of IMP's Board ofEx~cutive 
Dir~ctors shortly after its adoption by the General 
Assembly and before its fQ~mal transmittal to the Fund. 
Earlier General Assembly resolutions on the same 
subject and relevant to the Fund's work had also be~n 
brought to the attention of its Executive Directors. 

. ~ 

28. )'he Board of Governors, which met annually, had 
delegated to the Board of Executive Di:r;ectors, which was 
in continuous session, responsibility for dealing with 
the Fund's day"to .. day work •. -, The Executive Direc­
tors who made up the Board had been appointed or 
dected.by all the members of the Fund, andeacltDirector, 
when voting, cast as a unit the number of votes pertaining 
to all tlh.e countries which appointed or elected him. The 
Executive Directors were responsible for the FunO.'s 
general operations, arid the Fund's staff and managemeht 
conducted its ordinary business under their direction. 

29. The Fund's competent organs wer~ therefore fr~lly 
aware of those resolutions and, in their relevant decisiGhs, 
would at all times be guided by and act in··.accordal;lce 
with the purposes and provisions of the Fund's P~ticles 
of Agreement and the relevant pt(liVisions of its a~'eemei.tt 
with the United Nations, , 

0 

30. Mr~ LEWIS (International Civil Aviation Organiza­
tion) said that ICAO~s position on the matter under. 
consideration was clearly described in paragraph 36 of 
docume11.t E/4557. ICAO was prepared to implem~nt the 
decisions on training if the need arose. j • 

\~ 

31. Mr. S~DRY (Office of the(, United Nations High 
Commissioner for Refugees) said that the ,FAO represen­
tative had already described joint FAO/UNHCR activities 
to help refugees meet their food requirements in all the 
areas in qu~stion. The state111ent made by the High 
Commissio)ler at the joint m~etings of ACC and -CPC ,, 
ha4 been summarized in paragraph 4~ of document 
E/4557 ·and he would certainly.refer to the matter under 
consideration when he submitted his report to the 
Ccuncil under agep.da item 21. . 

~· . 

32. Mr. COX (Si~rra Leone) asked wheth~r the World 
Bank contemplated granting financial assistanc~ to 
South Mrica and Portugal while they continued their 
policies of colonial domination. -

33. Mr. CONSOLO (International Bank for Reconstruc­
tion and Development) said that the Bank's relationship 
with its individual members was · confid~ntial and could 
not be discussed with other Governments outside 
r.11eetings of the Board. A departure from that principl~ 
in respect of two particular countries could invite a 
discussion on the Board's relations with other countries 
at1d thereby seriously impair its ability to operate 
effectively. 



14l Economic ar..d S~ial COJP!CU-Forty-ftfth se$sion 
~----------------------------~--~----------~------------------------------

34. Mr. EKONDY-AK.ALA (Congo, Brazzaville) 
expressed dissatisfaction with the World Bank represent .. 
ative's reply. He looked forw~rd to hearing statements 
from representatives of specialized agencies who had been 
absent from the meeting. 
II 

35. The PRESIDENT said that discussion of the item 
would be resumed at a later date. 

\'1 ,, 

\-:J AGENDA ITEM 12 

Question of convening an intemationnl confei~nce on 
problems of the human environment (E/4466/Add.l, 
E/4553; E}L.1226) (resumed from the 1548th meeting) 

36. Mr. !STROM (Sweden), introducing the five-Power 
draft resolution (E/L.l226), said that th.e Council's 
dis~ussion had revealed a widespread desire for the 
United ~ations to deal with problems of the human 
environment. Considerable support had been shown for 
convening a conference,· .. the ll\ain purpose of which 
would be to alert Government~ and public opinion ~o 
the importance of the question. A special note of urgexfuy 
had been brought inta the discussions by developing 
countries; they wished to avoid the errors committed by 
developed countries and felt that a study of the problems 
would reveal the need to help the developing countries 
plan their cities and rural communitie&. The sponsors 
would have liked to rec~'mme,nd the General Assembly to 
convene a conference, b~t had decided, in the light of the 
discussion, merely to indicate the Council's view that 
su~,a conference would serve a useful purpose. It would 
not-he . purely technical, but woulr.l provide a meeting 
ground for··· specialists, administrators and political 
representatives. It might last for about three weeks and 
its cost would not be exorbitant. 

37. The :fitst preambulat paragraph of the draft resolution 
described the problem and indicated some of the causes 
of the deterioration in the quality of the human environ· 
ment. The draft 1esoluti(m then went on to emphasize 
the Council's concern withe:effects on the condition of 
mand and the 1.1-rgent need for action to '' el.itilinate the 
impairment of the human environment ". It asked. the 
General Assembly to take into consideration the views 
expressed on the subject at the Council's current session 
and the results of the confertJnce on the biosphere organ· 
ized by UNESCO, and to ensure that detailed and careful 
preparations were made for the conference. 

38. Mr. RENBORG (Observer for the Council of 
Europe); speaking at the invitation of the President, 
~aid that the Council of Eu.ropr~ had been actively con­
cerned with problems of the humt.Hl environment for many 
years. Part of the organiza~pn ~s work progranune was 
concerned with man's physical environment and resources; 
the aim being to ensure that Europ,e's natural resources 
and biological heritage were properly managed and not 
misused, so that Europeans might enjoy a balanced and 
wholesome physical environment. In that conne:Xion, 
the Committee of Ministers of thr~ Council of Europe 
had recently approved a DeclaratY.oh of Principles of 

Air Pollution Control, and a European Water Charter 
had been promulgated. 
39. His organization was preparing for a European 
conservation year in 1970, during which it was proposed 
to convene a European conservation cont~rence. The 
conference would last a week and would be ''attended by 
;~cientists and technical experts and by representatives of 
political and professional groups concerned with problems 
of environment. The purpose of the conference would be 
to m.eke both policy-makers and the general public aware 
of those problems. It was expect~ld that the main conclu· 
sions of the discussions would be summed up in a declara"' 
tion formulating an ecological a-pproach to- environment 
conservation. The proposed Ulldted Nations conference 
would be wider in scope than the one planned by the 
Council of Europe, both geographically and otherwise, 
but both projects had similar aims. His o~ganizati?n wo~d 
follow the progress of the United Nations project Wlth 
great interest and was ready to assist in any way possible. 

40. Mr. EKONDYMAKALA (Congo, Brazzaville) drew 
attention to the title of the draft resolution. He felt that 
the problems of the " human environment " were less 
urgent fo:r th~ developing cou:ntries than the problems of 
" man and his env3ronment ", which involved the question 
of aid. 

41. Mr. BRILLANTES (PhiHppines) said tl~at the second 
preambular paragraph of t:b.e draft resolution should 
indicate the causes of the " effects '', and he therefore 
proposed the insertion of th.e words &t of this " between 
the words " effects '-' and f' o:n ". He had some misgivings 
about operative paragraphs' 1 and 2; the ternts of the 
draft .resolution should not imply that the only way .of 
dealing with the problems was a conference. Whatever 
solution was adopted, careful preparation would certainly 
be necessary. Subject to those reservations, he would 
support the draft resolution .. 

42. Mr. ALLEN (Uni~ed Kingdom) said that in view of 
the importance of the m~ttter it was essential that any 
resolution adopted by the Council s~~ould be as accurate 
and sensible as possible. It was alsc~ desb:able that the 
Council should take a uruanimous decision on the matter, 
Unfortunately, the United Kingdom delegation was 
unable to supp.ort the draft resqlution as it stood because 
it went too far in the dit:ection of prejudging any decision 
the General Assembly might take on the matter. The 
United Kingdom delegation, together with some others, 
was therefore submitting some amendments, which 
would be circulated at the next meeting.1 The delegation 
of the Philippines, in particular, might find that those 
amendments went t.t considerable way towards meeting 
its wishes. 

43. Mr. CLAMOUNGOU (Chad) said that there was 
some truth in the contention of the representative of the 
Congo (Brazzaville) that for the developing countries the 
problem of the human environment was of secondary 
importance. It n:rlght be as well, however, if the developing 
countries took steps to forestall the pernicious conse-

1 See B/L.1227, subsequently distributed. 



........ ---------------1..;....55;....;.3.:;,;rd,_m....;...;~ting-25 July 1968 143 

quences of development experienced by the industrialized 
col!ntries. He :hoped, therefore, that the delegation of the 
Congo (]3razzaville) would be able to join the delegation 
of Chad in supporting the draft resolution. 

44. Mr. BRA:OLEY (Argentina) said that like all coun­
tries in an intermediate stage of development, Argentina 
included both highly developed and under-developed 
area~. The ills referred to in tlie first preambular paragraph 
oY the draft resolution wet:e alr-eady apparent in the 
9-eveloped areas and must t·;e prevented from spreadiug 
to those as yet under-dev~loped. It was with that idea in 
mind that Argentina had C()·sponsored the draft resolu­
tion. 
45. As to the amendment suggested by the representative 
of the Congo (Brazzaville), the purpose of the draft 
resolution, like that of all United Nations activities, was 
to improve the human conqition. That purpose was 
implicit in the title proposed by the sponsors. 

46. The United Kingdom del~gation's contention that 
the draft resolution prejudged any decision the Genera1 
Assembly might take was perhaps attributable to the fact 
that the English and Spanish texts of the last preambular 
paragraph did not correspond. It was ~;learly stated in 
the Spanish text ttiat a conference would be only one of 
the ways of serving the purposes outlined in the penul­
timate preambular paragraph. In any case, operative 
paragraph 1 made it clear that the decision on the desira­
bility of a conferen(;e rested with the General Assembly. 

47. Mr. FORTHO:MME (Belgium) said that his dele­
gation could support the five-Power draft resolution. All 
countries were liable to br- affected by impairment of 
the human environment. Many developing countries, for 
instance, were face:d with the problem of erosion. With 
a view to enablin~g the Council to take a unanimous 
decision on the matter, however, his delegation wished 
to propose some amendments to the five-Po":'er text. 
First, the title should be amended to read: " Question 
of the impairment of human environments ", To put the 
word " environment " in the plural would i1l1dicate that 
the resolution was not concerned with a single environ­
ment but with different conditions in various countries 
throughout the ,·vorld. Secondly, in operative paragraph 1, 
the words " the desirability of convening '' should be 
replaced b)· the words " study the possible convening of". 
That would take account of the comments made by the 
representative of the Philippines. Thirdly, in order to 
make it cleat what the Council intended in speaking of 
a conference, the words " such preparations " in operati\'e 
paragraph 2 should be replaced by the words " the 
above-mentioned study", and operative paragraph 2.A (a) 
should be amended to read>: " a work programme for 
such a conference designect-in such a way as effectively 
to attract the attention of Governments and to make 
world public opinion aware of the importance of the 
matter." 
48. Finally, it should be noted that in the last preambular 
paragraph there was a decided discrepancy between the 
French and Spanish texts on the one liand and the 
English text on the other. 

49. Mr. STANOVNIK (Executive Secretary, Economic 
Commission for Eurupe) said that the Council·· might 
wish, before taking a decision on the draft resolution, to 
consider the activities already under way in ECE. Euto .. 
pean countries had long been aware of the problems of 
the human environment, and such matters a$ urban and ' 
rural planning, water and· ai:r poHutioil,""and ash and 
waste disposal had been discussed by the various com­
mittees of the Commission. In '1966, the Commission had 
decided, in its resolution 5 (.XXII), that there should be 
a meeting of governmental experts on problems relating 
to tlte environment and its influence on society and on 
the development of the national economy. At the Com­
mission's request, ··the Executive Secretary had asked 
Governments for their suggestion~ on specific questions 
which might usefully be dealt wit,h at the meetirig and, had 
submitted a report on the matt\ . (to the Commission at 
its twenty-third session (E/ECE/675 and Add.l). Having 
studied that repor.t, the Commission had decided that 
the meeting of government experts should be held in 
Czechoslovakia in 1970 and should be preceded, in~ 
February 1969, by a preparatory group. The Commission 
hoped that the meeting would concentrate' on the specific 
question of the economic implications of environmental 
problems and the relevant policy recommen4~ations. 

50. Mr. GREGH (France) said that, as its representative 
had made clear at the 1547th meeting, the French dele­
gati!:>n agreed that a thorough study should be made of 
the ways and means of remedying the ills referred to in 
the five-Power proposal. That text however, prejudged 
the question of convening a conference. Without con• 
siderable amendments, therefore, his delegation would be 
unable to su9port the proposal. It seemed inconsistent 
to submit a proposal for a coijfei'ence to the General 
Assembly and at the same time to ~ake provision for 
very detailed preparations fot that co{iference. Lowpally, 
the Council should have noted the problems arising in the 
matter and requested the Secretary-General. to undertake 
the studies envis!ged in . operative p~ragraph 2.~. 

51. He hoped that the amendme~td;to be subnutted by 
the United .Kingdom delegation ?WOuld enable the French 
delegation to,;v~te in favour of the text. A draft resolution 
on a subject iis! broad as the human environment should 
be supported by all, or at least the great majority of, the 
members of the Council. 

52. Mr. EKO'.NDY-AKALA (Congo, Brazzaville), refer­
ring to the statements made by the ~eptesentativ,~s of 
Argentina and Chad, said that his delegation agreed 
vvith the substance of the draft resolution. Th~!'e was, 
however, no question of problems of air or water pollution 
in under-developed countries. Such problems would arise 
only when those countries became developed~ The devel­
oping countries would, however, wish to express their 
views at the conference proposed in the draft resolution 
and it was for that reason that he had proposed that the 
subject of the conference shq,J:rltf6e "' man and his environ­
ment ''. What the developing countries wanted was to 
link the problem of human, environment with that~f 
assistance. ·· 



144 Economic and SDcia! Councii-Forty .. flfth session 

53. Mr. BENLBR (Turkey), noting that the French, 
Philippine and United KJngdom representatives had 
apparently questioned whether a conference was the best 
way of dealing with the matter, said that scientists and 
technologists interested in problems of the human environ .. 
ment should be given an opportunity of meeting and 
exchanging views on the subject. The sponsors of the 
draft resolution had emphasized that any conference 
should be preceded by careful preparations, taking parti­
cularly into consideration the concern expressed, among 
others, by the representative of the Philippines. The 
comments of the repreRentative of the Congo (Brazzaville) 
concerning the needs of the developing countries were 
understandable. The term "' human environment " had 
however, become traditional in the United Nations and 
it therefore seemed unne~essary to alter the. title. l'rovision 
could be made in the conference's terms of reference to 
ensure that attention was paid to the questiona mentioned 
by the representative of the Congo (Brazzaville). The 
amendment to the title proposed by the Belgian represen­
tative could be accepted. 

Printed in Belgium 

54. Mr. ALLEN (United Kingdom)· asked whether the 
title of the draft resolution should not correspond exactly 
with the title of the agenda item. 
55. Mr. KASSUM (Secretary of the Council) said that 
~!though the substance of agenda items could not, of 
course, be changed, the Council was perfectly free to 
change the wording. 
56. Mr. BRADLEY (Argentina) suggested that further 
discussion should be deferred until the next meeting when 
the Council would have received the amendments being 
proposed by the United Kingdom delegation. In the 
light of those amendments, and of the suggestions made 
at the current meeting, the sponsors would be in a position 
to decide whether they should revise their proposal. 

57. The PRESIDENT sugge:sted that further attempts 
should be made, before the lltext meeting, to produce a 
text acceptable to the Council as a whole •. If that proved 
impossible, the amendments being proposed by the United 
Kingdom and those suggested at the current meeting 
would be examined by the Council at its next meeting. 

The meeting rose at 6.20 p.m. 

04072-September 1968-1,500 




